
 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 
 

  
 

 

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

JOE LOMBARDO TERRY REYNOLDS 
Governor Director B&I 

STATE OF NEVADA 
VAUGHN HARTUNG 

Chairman 

DAWN GIBBONS 
Commissioner 

R. DAVID GROOVER 
Commissioner 

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY 

NEVADA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

MINUTES OF THE May 25, 2023 GENERAL SESSION 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order 

Chairman Vaughn Hartung called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. 

2. Roll Call 

Present: Chairman Vaughn Hartung, Commissioner Dawn Gibbons, Commissioner R. David Groover, 
Deputy Commissioner Jennifer De Rose, Administrative Attorney Patricia Erickson, Applications 
Manager Liz Babcock, Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton, Financial Analyst Paul Servello, Deputy 
Attorney General Radhika Kunnel, Sr. Deputy Attorney General Louis Csoka 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

Sr. Deputy Attorney General Louis Csoka led a recital of the pledge. 

4. Public Comment 
None 

5. Approval of Agenda  

Applications Manager Liz Babcock requested Items 112 and 128 be removed from consideration, that 
Items 151 and 152 be taken together, Item 107 dates should be Feb, 4, 2023 to June 3, 2023, Item 110 
should be retroactive, Item 114 dates should be March 22, 2023 to Sept. 21, 2023 and Item 153 the 
CPCN should be 1101.  Approved as modified 3-0 

6. Approval of the Minutes of the April 20, 2023, Agenda Meeting 
Approved 3-0 

7. Approval of the Minutes of the April 21, 2023, NAC Regulation Workshop (23-03034) 
Approved 3-0 



 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

  
 

   
 

 

 
  

 

 
 

 

  
 

  
  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 

8. Briefings from the Commissioners 
Commissioner Gibbons commented on the staff of Authority. Commissioner Groover complimented the 
Compliance staff on the recent EDC event and the tremendous job done to speed up the process. Chairman 
Hartung echoed the comments made by Commissioner Groover and thanked staff.  Additionally he requested 
the Authority revisit the Covid cleaning fees and the licensure of attorneys appearing before the Authority at the 
next scheduled Agenda. 

9. Briefing from the Deputy Commissioner 

Deputy Commissioner De Rose echoed comments made by the Commissioners and reminded carriers 
of the annual limo decal renewal and dates. 

10. Report of Legal Counsel 

Deputy Attorney General Radhika Kunnel reported on all open items. 

ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS AND IMPOUNDMENTS 
Items 11 through 86 were considered collectively,  Approved 3-0 

11. Citation 22364 issued to Holiday Motor Coach, LLC for a violation of NAC 706.1377(2) (DG) 

12. Citation 23384 issued to Trimont Land Company, Inc. d/b/a Northstar at Tahoe Resorts for a violation of NRS 
706.463.4 (DG) 

13. Citation 23866 issued to Sergio Montoya for violation of NAC 706.228 (DG) 

14. Citation 23879 issued to Daunte Hendrix/Hendrix Movement & Logistics for violations of NRS 706.386 and 
NRS 706.758 (DG) 

15. Citation 23880 issued to Michael Watson/Spirit Led Movers, LLC for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 
706.758 (DG) 

16. Citation 23902 issued to Eloisa Moran De Delgado d/b/a 6 Angels Towing for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 
49 CFR 396.17 (DG) 

17. Citation 23917 issued to 777 De La Fuente Towing Corporation for violation of NAC 706.203(4) (DG) 

18. Citation 23957 and 23975 and Impound I-4515 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citations 23957 and 23975 issued to Mussie Gebremedhin for violations of NRS 706.386 and 
NRS 706A.280 (DG) 

19. Citation 23966 and 23967 and Impound I-4507 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citations 23966 and 23967 issued to Lorens Behnam for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 
706A.280 (DG) 

20. Citation 23968 and 23969 and Impound I-4512 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citations 23968 and 23969 issued to Carlos Rivera-Andrade for violations of NRS 706.386 
and NRS 706A.280 (DG) 



 

 

 

 
 

 

  
 

 

    
 

 

 
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
  

 

  
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

 
   

 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

  
 

  
  

 

21. Citation 23973 and Impound I-4521 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 23973 issued to Teklit Weldu for violation of NRS 706.386 (DG) 

22. Citation 23979 issued to Pacific Towing Service, LLC d/b/a Pacific Towing Service for violation of NAC 
706.203(4) (DG) 

23. Citation 24602 issued to My Ride to Work, LLC d/b/a My Ride to Work for violation of NAC 706.203(4) (5 
counts) (DG) 

24. Citation 24769 issued to John Rodighiero for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.213 and NAC 
706.1378 (DG) 

25. Citation 24772 issued to James McRoberts for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.211 and NAC 
706.1378 (DG) 

26. Citation 24773 issued to Michael Furguson for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.213 and NAC 
706.1378 (DG) 

27. Impound I-4730 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to U-Haul Company of 
Arizona (DG) 

28. Impound I-4770 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Hertz Corporation 
(DG) 

29. Impound I-4772 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Luis Bustamante (DG) 

30. Citation 22069 and Impound I-4426 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 22069 issued to Dawit Woldetsadik for violation of NRS 706.386 (RDG) 

31. Citation 22070 and Impound I-4322 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 22070 issued to Luis Borges Chiong for violation of NRS 706.386 (RDG) 

32. Citation 22874 and Impound I-4326 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 22874 issued to Mark Swagerty Jr. for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (RDG) 

33. Citation 22946 issued to Hasan Jamahl Blount for a violation of NRS 706.386 (RDG) 

34. Citation 22986 and Impound I-4519 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 22986 issued to Frank Corominis for violation of NRS 706.386 (RDG) 

35. Citation 23680 issued to AWG Ambassador, LLC for violation of NAC 706.218 (RDG) 

36. Citation 23860 issued to Inside Vegas, LLC d/b/a Disco Bus Las Vegas for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 
CFR 396.17 and NAC 706.203(5) (RDG) 



 

 

 
 

 

  

 
 

 
 

 

  

 
 

  
 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

    
 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 

  
 

37. Citation 23961 and Impound I-4505 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 23961 issued to Luis Vazquez for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (RDG) 

38. Citation 23962 and 23963 and Impound I-4506 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citations 23962 and 23963 issued to Yong Liu for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 
706A.280 (RDG) 

39. Citation 23970 and Impound I-4514 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 23970 issued to Muhammed Khera for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (RDG) 

40. Citation 23971 and 23972 and Impound I-4513 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citations 23971 and 23972 issued to Jorge Salazar for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 
706A.280 (RDG) 

41. Citation 24527 issued to BRP Holdings, LLC d/b/a B and R Towing for violation of NAC 706.203(4) (2 
counts) (RDG) 

42. Citation 24532 issued to Avila’s Towing, LLC for a violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.51(7)(I) 
(RDG) 

43. Citation 24551 and Impound I-4524 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 24551 issued to David Garcia for violation of NRS 706.386 (RDG) 

44. Citation 24576 and Impound I-4516 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 24576 issued to Jordan Armstrong for violation of NRS 706.386 (RDG) 

45. Citation 24578 and Impound I-4522 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 24578 issued to Carlos Duarte-Manzo for violation of NRS 706.386 (RDG) 

46. Citation 24592 issued to Bart Mulvihill for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (RDG) 

47. Citation 24599 and Impound I-4529 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 24599 issued to Leandre Alleyne for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (RDG) 

48. Citation 24657 issued to My Ride to Work, LLC d/b/a My Ride to Work for violation of NAC 706.203(4) (4 
counts) (RDG) 

49. Citation 24753 issued to James Nunn for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.211 and NAC 706.1378 
(RDG) 

50. Impound I-4311 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Florizelle Cuenca 
Ducay (RDG) 

51. Impound I-4527 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Janet Grantham (RDG) 



 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 

  
 

   
 

 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

52. Impound I-4702 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Michelle Dominique 
Alejandre (RDG) 

53. Citation 22173 and Impound I-3819 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 22173 issued to Luckenson Saint Clair for violation of NRS 706.386 (GA) 

54. Citations 22331, 22939, 23151, 23857 and 23858 issued to Western Trails Charters & Tours LLC d/b/a St. 
George Express, Salt Lake Express for the violations of NAC 706.360 (4 counts), NAC 706.379; NAC 706.381; 
NAC 706.203; NAC 706.311 (14 counts); and NAC 706.354 (14 counts); and NRS 706.285 (17 counts) (GA) 

55. Citation 22360 issued to Triple JJJ Corporation for violation of NAC 706.191 (GA) 

56. Citation 22987 and Impound I-4320 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 22987issued to Constantin Petrescu for violation of NRS 706.386 (GA) 

57. Citation 23023 issued to Fast Towing, Inc. for violation of NAC 706.4275(1)(b) and NAC 706.420(1)(h) (GA) 

58. Citation 23297 and Impound I-4352 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 23297 issued to Rudresh Kumar for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (GA) 

59. Citation 23862 issued to Safeco Parking & Transportation Services, LLC for violation of NAC 706.218 (GA) 

60. Citation 23884 and Impound I-4520 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 23884 issued to Alcibiades Hernandez/Aura Towing, LLC for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 
706.758 (GA) 

61. Citation 23909 issued to VBNZ Limo, LLC for violation of NAC 706.203(4) (GA) 

62. Citation 23914 issued to B&B Garner, Inc. d/b/a Atlas Towing & Recovery for violation of NAC 706.203(4) 
(GA) 

63. Citation 23915 issued to Anytime Towing, LLC for a violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 396.17 (GA) 

64. Citation 23981 issued to V Transportation, LLC d/b/a Vegas Transportation for violation of NAC 706.203(4) 
(GA) 

65. Citation 23985 issued to Desert Run, LLC for a violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 396.17 (GA) 

66. Citation 23987 issued to AWG Ambassador, LLC for violation of NAC 706.203(4) (GA) 

67. Citation 24002 and Impound I-4526 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 24002 issued to Robert Brushawn Smith for violation of NRS 706.386 (GA) 

68. Citation 24005 and Impound I-4706 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 24005 issued to Sam Mehadi for violation of NRS 706.386 (GA) 



 

 

 
 

 

  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

   
 

 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 

 
   

 

  
 

 

 
 

 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

69. Citation 24581 and Impound I-4526 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to 
and Citation 24581 issued to Mason Jones for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (GA) 

70. Citation 24590 and 24591 and Impound I-4478 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citations 24590 and 24591 issued to Waulder Borrel Reyes for violations of NRS 706.386 and 
NRS 706A.280 (GA) 

71. Impound I-4319 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Wajma Astanikzi (GA) 

72. Impound I-4490 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Joel Vasquez Marte 
(GA) 

73. Impound I-4492 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Mekdes Mekonnen 
Temesgen (GA) 

74. Impound I-4531 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Chantia Scott (GA) 

75. Citation 22074 issued to Ermias Tekle Gulbet for violation of NAC 706.228 

76. Citation 23431 issued to 619 Management, LLC d/b/a West Coast Towing & Recovery for violation of NRS 
706.451 

77. Citation 23432 issued to Bear Towing, Inc. d/b/a Bear Towing Roadside Service for violation of NRS 706.451 

78. Citation 23614 issued to Royalty Towing, LLC d/b/a Royalty Towing for violation of NRS 706.451 (4 counts) 

79. Citation 23615 issued to ARB Las Vegas, A Nevada Corporation d/b/a Las Vegas Towing for violation of NRS 
706.451 

80. Citation 24026 and 24675 issued to AWG Ambassador, LLC d/b/a Universal Limousine Services for 
violations of NAC 706.229(1)(b), NAC 706.353(1), NAC 706.3612(5) (2 counts) and NAC 706.311(1)(a) 

81. Citation 24653 issued to Royalty Towing, LLC d/b/a Royalty Towing for violation of NAC 706.203(4) (2 
counts) 

82. Citation 24674 issued to USA Towing, Inc. for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.301 and NAC 
706.420 

83. Citation 24681 issued to Ali Qasam Al-Azzawi for violation of NAC 706.228 

84. Citation 24906 issued Jofam, LLC d/b/a All in Towing for a violation of NAC 706.4275 

85. Citation 24908 issued to Mehari Samuel for violation of NAC 706.228 

86. Citation 24989 issued to Luis Bustamante for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 



 

 

 
 

  
 

 

  
 

 

 

   
 

   

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

   

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

87. Docket 23-05011 Discussion item regarding Interim Temporary Approvals granted by the Authority and what 
that means for the carrier who files for such approvals and how the approval process is carried out by Staff. 

Applications Manager, Liz Babcock, summarized the procedure utilized for Interim Authority Requests and the 
timelines involved. 

88. Docket 23-05012 Discussion item to extend the compliance period to one (1) year with no extensions unless an 
extenuating circumstance is provided by the applicant.  

Applications Manager, Liz Babcock, summarized the procedures utilized in the application process and the 
policies currently in place.  She requested a policy change to allow a one year compliance period with no 
extensions. Approved 3-0 

89. Docket 23-05013 Discussion item, Staff’s request to deviate from NAC 706.356 to automatically grant one (1) 
year temporary discontinuance period to all carriers.  
Applications Manager, Liz Babcock, summarized the procedure utilized in the temporary discontinuance process 
and requested that staff be granted a deviation from regulation to extend the expiration for one year from the start 
date of the request. Brent Carson, Esq. questioned the legality of the change.  Chad Taylor appeared and 
questioned if the discontinuance he has filed would go to a one year. Deputy Attorney General Kunnel stated that 
staff has the ability to request a deviation from regulation. Approved 3-0 

APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND 
NECESSITY TO PROVIDE TOW CAR SERVICE 

Items 90 through 95 were considered collectively, All dockets modified to include a one year compliance 
period. Approved 3-0 

90. Docket 22-12001 The Application of Mobile Mechanic Services & Towing, LLC for a certificate of public 
convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of 
Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG) 

91. Docket 22-12015 The Application of Messiah’s Towing, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and 
necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff 
investigation concluded. (RDG) 

92. Docket 22-12016 The Application of AM-PM Towing, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and 
necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff 
investigation concluded. (DG) 

93. Docket 22-12029 The Application of Santa Fe Towing, Inc. for a certificate of public convenience and 
necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff 
investigation concluded. (DG) 

94. Docket 23-01022 The Application of All State Towing, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and 
necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff 
investigation concluded. (RDG) 



 

 

 

   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

  

  
 

  

  
 

   

  

  
 

  

 
 

  
 

 

95. Docket 23-03027 The Application of Alejandro Morales Mejia d/b/a Alex Transmora Services for a certificate 
of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State 
of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG) 

APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND 
NECESSITY TO PROVIDE CHARTER BUS SERVICE 

Items 96 through 99 were considered collectively. All dockets modified to include a one year compliance 
period. Approved 3-0 

96. Docket 19-04007 The Joint Application of Ephrem Beyene for authority to sell and transfer and Ephrem 
Gebremedhin to purchase and acquire 50% of Eagle Transportation, LLC, a carrier authorized to provide 
charter bus service within the State of Nevada granted under CPCN 2150.  Staff investigation concluded. 
(RDG) 

97. Docket 22-07023 The Application of LV VIP Concierge, LLC d/b/a VIP Coach, VIP Luxury Coach, LV VIP 
Carriage, for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of 
Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG) 

98. Docket 23-01008 The Application of Diplomat Transportation, LLC d/b/a Diplomat Transportation for a 
certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada.  Staff 
investigation concluded. (DG) 

99. Docket 23-01020 The Application of United Party Bus, LLC d/b/a United Party Bus for a certificate of  public 
convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada.  Staff investigation 
concluded. (RDG) 

100. Docket 22-03009 The Application of Henny’s Transportation, LLC d/b/a Henny’s, Henny’s Transportation for 
a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada.  Staff 
investigation concluded. (RDG) 

James Kent, Esq. appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the 
procedural history of the application and indicated staff was not in support.  Commissioner Gibbons offered the 
suggestion that there be additional operational inspections added to the Compliance Order.  Commissioner 
Groover stated his agreement with the statement made by Ms. Babcock and suggested two (2) unannounced 
operational inspections within the next two years to insure compliance.  Mr. Kent offered a statement.  Motion 
to include two (2) additional operational inspections per year for two years.  Approved as modified 3-0 

MOTION TO EXTEND COMPLIANCE PERIOD 
Items 101 through 103 were considered collectively. Modified to include a one year compliance period - 
Approved 3-0 

101. Docket 21-11011 The motion to extend the compliance period 120 days from February 8, 2023, for the 
application of Sanchez Family, LLC d/b/a PST Towing. Staff investigation concluded. 



 

 

   
 

 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 

  
 

 

  

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

102. Docket 22-03010 The motion to extend the compliance period 90 days from May 3, 2023, for the application of 
Engracia Adriana Leal d/b/a H & J Towing Express.  Staff investigation concluded. 

103. Docket 22-04026 The motion to extend the compliance period 120 days from April 19, 2023, for the 
application of Sanzy, RB, LLC. Staff investigation concluded. 

104. Docket 22-05025 The motion to extend the compliance period 120 days from April 19, 2023, for the application 
of Grande Transportation, LLC. Staff investigation concluded. 

     Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated that staff has reservations but are 
willing to allow the extension.  Modified to include the one year approval from the start date – 
Approved 3-0 

REQUEST FOR TEMPORARY DISCONTINUANCE 
Items 105 through 111 were considered collectively. All dockets modified to reflect a one year period 
from the start date- Approved 3-0 

105. Docket 23-04002 The temporary discontinuance from April 4, 2023, through October 4, 2023, of service 
provided by Experience Transport Agency, LLC, under CPCN 2229.  Staff investigation concluded. 

106. Docket 23-04012 The temporary discontinuance from April 7, 2023, through October 6, 2023, of service 
provided by Cosmo, Inc. under CPCN 1107.  Staff investigation concluded. 

107. Docket 23-04015 The temporary discontinuance from February 4, 2023, through June 4, 2023 June 30, 2023, of 
service provided by American Investment Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a AMR under CPCN 1034, Sub 3. This requires 
retroactive approval.  Staff investigation concluded. 

108. Docket 23-04028 The temporary discontinuance from April 14, 2023, through October 14, 2023, of service 
provided by R & R Transportation, LLC under CPCN 2264.  Staff investigation concluded. 

109. Docket 23-04033 The temporary discontinuance from April 18, 2023, through August 21, 2023, of service 
provided by Fleming Investments, LLC d/b/a Big O’s Towing under CPCN 7497.  Staff investigation concluded. 

110. Docket 23-05003 The temporary discontinuance from May 2, 2023, through November 2, 2023, of service 
provided by Bear Towing, Inc. d/b/a Bear Towing Roadside Services under CPCN 7442. Requires retroactive 
approval.   Staff investigation concluded. 

111. Docket 23-05004 The temporary discontinuance from June 1, 2023, through December 1, 2023, of service 
provided by City Limo, LLC under CPCN 1118, Sub 3.  Staff investigation concluded. 

112. Docket 23-04011 The temporary discontinuance from April 6, 2023, through October 5, 2023, of service 
provided by 24/7 Limousines, LTD d/b/a 24/7 Limousines Operated by Experience Transport Agency, LLC, under 
CPCN 1065, Sub 4.  Staff investigation concluded. 

Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration. 



 

 

 
 

  

 
 

 

 

 
 

  
 

 

  
  

 
   

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

REQUEST TO EXTEND TEMPORARY DISCONTINUANCE 

113. Docket 22-09019 The request to extend temporary discontinuance from February 28, 2023, through August 28, 
2023, of services provided by Frontier Movers, LLC d/b/a Frontier Movers under CPCN 3382 and if denied, Staff’s 
recommendation to issue an Order To Show Cause as to why the CPCNs should not be revoked. This requires 
retroactive approval.  Staff investigation concluded. 

Applications Manager, Liz Babcock, summarized the procedural history of the docket.  Motion for Order 
to Show Cause Approved 3-0 

114. Docket 22-09027 The request to extend temporary discontinuance from March 22, 2023, through August 
September 21, 2023, of services provided by Fast Towing King, LLC d/b/a Ken Towing King under CPCN 7527 
and if denied, Staff’s recommendation to issue an Order To Show Cause as to why the CPCNs should not be 
revoked. This requires retroactive approval.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Applications Manager, Liz Babcock, summarized the procedural history of the docket and indicated staff support. 
Approved 3-0 

115. Docket 22-10001 The request to extend temporary discontinuance from March 30, 2023, through September 30, 
2023, of services provided by Recovery Towing, LLC under CPCN 7519 and if denied, Staff’s recommendation to 
issue an Order To Show Cause as to why the CPCNs should not be revoked.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Applications Manager, Liz Babcock, summarized the procedural history of the docket and indicated staff support. 
Approved 3-0 

116. Docket 22-11023 The request to extend temporary discontinuance from May 1, 2023, through October 1, 2023, 
of services provided by 24/7 Towing, Inc. d/b/a 24/7 Towing under CPCN 7119, Sub 2, and if denied, Staff’s 
recommendation to issue an Order To Show Cause as to why the CPCNs should not be revoked. Staff 
investigation concluded. 
Applications Manager, Liz Babcock, summarized the procedural history of the docket and indicated staff support 
to extend to November 14, 2023. Approved as modified 3-0 

EXPIRED TEMPORARY DISCONTINUANCE 
Items 117 through 120, with the exception of Items 118 and 119 were considered collectively, Order to Show 
Cause approved 3-0 

117. Docket 20-03022 The expired temporary discontinuance from September 18, 2022, through March 15, 2023, of 
service provided by Portofino Tours Service, Inc. d/b/a SEEUSATOURS under Permit MV 6142, Sub 1, and 
Staff’s recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why this Permit should not be revoked. Staff 
investigation concluded. 

118. Docket 20-08015 The expired temporary discontinuance from January 15, 2023, through April 15 July 1, 2023, 
of service provided by DCT Express, Inc. d/b/a DCT Express under Permit MV 6156, and Staff’s 
recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why this Permit should not be revoked.  Staff investigation 
concluded. 

 Applications Manager Liz Babcock clarified the expiration date of July 1, 2023.  Mie Tarama and Shinichiro 
Nagata appeared on behalf of the carrier and requested an expiration extension of December 1, 2023. 
Commissioner Groover questioned when the company might be able to resume operations.  Ms. Tarama indicated 
Japan opened travel approximately May 15, 2023.  A brief discussion ensued.  Discontinuance extended to 
December 1, 2023 – Approved 3-0 



 

 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

119. Docket 21-07019 The expired temporary discontinuance from January 21, 2022, through July 21, 2022 and as 
extended at the January 12, 2023 general session, of service provided by Fragela Towing under CPCN 7427, and 
Staff’s recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why this Permit should not be revoked. Staff 
investigation concluded. 

 Lucy Elias, Corporate Services and Melva Gonzalez, Fragela Towing appeared and stated they were ready to go 
back into business. Applications Manager Liz Babcock requested an Order to Show Cause be issued as of June 
15, 2023 if they have not resumed operations.  Approved 3-0 

120. Docket 22-09002 The expired temporary discontinuance from September 7, 2022, through March 7, 2023, of 
bus services provided by Inside Vegas, LLC d/b/a Disco Bus Las Vegas under CPCN 2191, Sub 1, and Staff’s 
recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the bus authorities should not be revoked.  Staff 
investigation concluded. 

PETITION TO DEVIATE FROM REGULATION 
Items 121 through 123 were considered collectively. Commissioner Groover recommended the carriers be allowed 
to post counties served inside the vehicle.  Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esq appeared and suggested this be added to 
the list of possible regulation changes for a future workshop.   Modified to include display within the vehicle -
Approved 3-0 

121. Docket 23-04030 The Petition to deviate from Regulation NAC 706.362 pursuant to NAC 706.1305 for services 
conducted by Reno Cab Company, Inc., d/b/a Reno-Sparks Cab Company granted under CPCN 1025, Sub 1, for 
final approval.  Staff investigation concluded. 

122. Docket 23-04031 The Petition to deviate from Regulation NAC 706.362 pursuant to NAC 706.1305 for services 
conducted by Roy L. Street d/b/a Capitol Cab Company granted under CPCN 2445, Sub 4, for final approval. 
Staff investigation concluded. 

123. Docket 23-04032 The Petition to deviate from Regulation NAC 706.362 pursuant to NAC 706.1305 for services 
conducted by Yellow Cab of Reno, Inc., d/b/a Star Taxi, Deluxe Taxi and Yellow Cab granted under CPCN 1014, 
Sub 2, for final approval.  Staff investigation concluded. 

124. Docket 23-03040 The Petition to deviate from Regulation NAC 706.208 and NAC 706.13775 for services 
conducted by T1 Transportation, Inc. granted under CPCN 2016, Sub 4.  Staff investigation concluded. 

      Applications Manager, Liz Babcock, summarized the request and indicated staff did not support the request.  
James Kent, Esq. appeared on behalf of the carrier and commented on the cooperation between the carrier and 
staff during the recent EDC event, he then summarized the Petition and reasonings.  Sr. Deputy Attorney General 
Csoka summarized the interstate/intrastate definition and the federal and state law limitations.  Commissioner 
Groover offered a lengthy statement and indicated he stands by the Final Order.  Deputy Attorney General 
Kunnel offered an additional statement of summary. Chief Compliance Audit Investigator Rene Revens stated the 
receipt of documentation from the carrier for the most recent EDC event was vastly improved over past years.  An 
additional discussion ensued.  

Petition to Deviate Denied 3-0 



 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 

   

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 

  
   

 

 
 

 

   
 

 

  
 

 

FINANCIAL RATES AND TARIFFS 
Items 125 through 139, with the exception of Item 128, were considered collectively, Approved 3-0 

125. Docket 22-07026 The Application of Bell Trans, A Nevada Corporation d/b/a Bell Trans, Bell Limousine for 
final approval of ta tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1023, Sub 2.  Staff investigation 
concluded. 

126. Docket 23-03003 The Application of Treasure Tours of Nevada, Inc. d/b/a Treasure Tours of Nevada for 
approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1066, Sub 2. Staff investigation 
concluded. 

127. Docket 23-03007 The Application of DG & CO, LLC d/b/a/ College Hunks Hauling Junk & Moving for 
approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 3392.  Staff investigation concluded. 

128. Docket 23-03008 The Application of Pink Jeep Tours, Inc. for final approval of a tariff rate modification for 
services conducted under CPCN 1078, Sub 3.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration. 

129. Docket 23-03013 The Application of Abraham Limo Service, Inc. d/b/a ALV Operated by Crown Limo, LLC 
for approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1090, Sub 2.  Staff investigation 
concluded. 

130. Docket 23-03014 The Application of Western Limousine Service, LLC d/b/a Western Limousine Service for 
approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1054, Sub 3. Staff investigation 
concluded. 

131. Docket 23-03015 The Application of Abraham Limo Service, Inc. d/b/a ALV d/b/a Crown Limo Operated by 
Crown Limo, LLC for approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1104, Sub 5. 
Staff investigation concluded. 

132. Docket 23-03019 The Application of All My Sons Moving and Storage of Las Vegas, LLC for final approval of 
a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 3256, Sub 3.  Staff investigation concluded. 

133. Docket 23-03029 The Application of Fast Towing, Inc. for approval of a tariff rate modification for services 
conducted under CPCN 7161, Sub 1. Staff investigation concluded. 

134. Docket 23-03036 The Application of Kaptyn Nevada d/b/a Presidential Limousine for final approval of a tariff 
rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1007, Sub 8.  Staff investigation concluded. 

135. Docket 23-03037 The Application of Kaptyn Nevada d/b/a Kaptyn for final approval of a tariff rate 
modification for services conducted under CPCN 1040, Sub 5.  Staff investigation concluded. 

136. Docket 23-03038 The Application of Kaptyn Nevada d/b/a Kaptyn for final approval of a tariff rate 136. 
modification for services conducted under CPCN 2063, Sub 2.  Staff investigation concluded. 



 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
      

 

 

   

 

 

 

   
 

       
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 

137. Docket 23-04027 The Application of R.A. Moving, LLC d/b/a Two Men and a Truck of Reno, Nevada for 
approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 3373.   Staff investigation concluded. 

138. Docket 23-04039 The Application of 1st Response Towing, Inc. d/b/a The Tow Truck Company for approval to 
add an additional tariff for services conducted under CPCN 7136, Sub 4 at a new location located in Pahrump, 
Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. 

139. Docket 23-05001 The Application of Red Carpet Moving, Inc. for approval of a tariff rate modification for 
services conducted under CPCN 3339.  Staff investigation concluded. 

140. Docket 22-09025 The Application of Reno Medical Transport, LLC d/b/a GMTCARE for approval of a tariff 
rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1143.  Staff investigation concluded. 

Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton summarized the request and indicated staff support, noting this tariff would 
be the first of this type, if approved.  Brent Carson, Esq. and Tommy Davis, owner, appeared on behalf of the 
carrier. A discussion ensued. Request denied 2-1 Gibbons opposed 

141. Docket 23-01026 The Application of Bour Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Vegas Limousine Service, Vegas Royalty 
Limos, Stardust Transportation Operated by LVL, LLC d/b/a Ls Vegas Limousines, Stardust Transportation for 
final approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 2149, Sub 8.  Staff investigation 
concluded. Tabled from previous general session. 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff had requested clarification for the 
tariff request. Brent Carson, Esq. appeared on behalf of the carrier and indicated the change was for charter bus 
only. Motion to approve modification for charter bus only  Approved 3-0 

142. Docket 23-02024 The Application of AWG Ambassador, LLC d/b/a AWG Ambassador Limousine, AWG 
Ambassador, AWG Charter Services for approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 
1041, Sub 7.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton summarized the request and indicated staff does not support the request..  Brent 
Carson, Esq. appeared on behalf of the carrier.  Commissioner Groover discussed the previous request for data to 
support the fees and that the Authority did not receive any information.  A discussion ensued.  Request denied 2-1 
Gibbons opposed 

143. Docket 23-04035 The Application of Omni Limousine, Inc. for approval of a tariff rate modification for 
services conducted under CPCN 1084, Sub 5.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff support.  Approved 3-0 

PETITION FOR RECONSIDERATION 

144. Docket 23-04013 Petition for Reconsideration from El Masters for denial of Free Shuttle Exemption – NAC 
706.147. 

Mr. Watson El did not appear.  Petition denied 3-0 

/ / / 

/ / / 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
       

 

 

 
        
 

 
 

 
       

 

      

 
 

  
 

 
 

  

 
 

 
 

APPLICATIONS FOR FULLY REGULATED CARRIERS 
Items 146 through 154 were considered collectively.  Approved 3-0 

145. Docket 18-03017 The request to extend Temporary Transfer of Operating Rights of Strip Limousine Services, 
LLC d/b/a Strip Limo granted under CPCN 1131, Sub 3, to Strip Limo, LLC during the pendency of the sale and 
transfer filed under Docket 21-11012. This includes a motion for interim authority and requires retroactive 
approval. Staff investigation concluded. (DG) 

Applications Manager, Liz Babcock, summarized the procedural history of the application and indicated staff 
support with the recommendation that the authority approve the extension but that upon the issuance of the 
Final Order for Sale and Transfer the Temporary Transfer shall expire. The extension is retroactive to 
February 26, 2023.  Brent Carson, Esq. appeared on behalf of the carrier.  Extension approved 3-0 

146. Docket 18-08033 The request to extend the Temporary Transfer of Operating Rights of Abraham Limo Service, 
Inc. d/b/a ALV granted under CPCN 1104, Sub 5, to Crown Limo, LLC during the pendency of the sale and 
transfer filed under Docket 21-11013. This includes a motion for interim authority and requires retroactive 
approval. Staff investigation concluded. (DG) 

147. Docket 19-07033 The request to extend the Temporary Transfer of Operating Rights of AWG Ambassador, 
LLC d/b/a Universal Limousine Services, granted under CPCN 1068, Sub 9, to Universal Limousine Services, 
LLC d/b/a ULS. This includes a request for retroactive approval.  Staff investigation concluded. (DG) 

148. Docket 21-02024 Status Check on the Temporary Transfer of Operating Rights of CT &T Transportation, LLC 
d/b/a CT &T Transportation Operated by Luxury Limousine of Las Vegas, LLC granted under CPCN 1058, Sub 
3, set to expire on July 27, 2023.  Staff investigation concluded. (DG) 

149. Docket 21-10039 The Application of My Ride to Work, LLC d/b/a My Ride to Work for final approval of an 
expansion of operating authority to do business under contract with Coeur Rochester, Inc., granted under Contract 
Carrier Permit MV 6154, Sub 2.  Staff investigation concluded. (DG)  

150. Docket 22-03044 The Joint Application of Sin City BJ, LLC d/b/a Zippy Shell of Las Vegas to sell and transfer 
and Forward Moving, LLC d/b/a Zippy Shell of Las Vegas, d/b/a Zippy Shell to purchase and acquire the 
authority to provide household goods and moving services within Clark County, Nevada granted under CPCN 
3380.  Staff investigation concluded. (RDG) 

151. Docket 22-07016 The Joint Application of AWG Ambassador, LLC d/b/a AWG Charter Services, AWG 
Ambassador to sell and transfer and Personal Sedan Services, LLC d/b/a PSS to purchase and acquire the 
authority to provide charter limousine services, special services, and airport transfer services within Clark County, 
Nevada granted under CPCN 1089, Sub 2.  Staff investigation concluded. (RDG) 

/ / / 



 

 

 

 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

 

  
  

        
 

 
 

 

  

         
 

 

 

152. Docket 22-07017 The Joint Application of AWG Ambassador, LLC d/b/a AWG Charter Services, AWG 
Ambassador to sell and transfer and Personal Sedan Services, LLC d/b/a PSS to purchase and acquire the 
authority to provide charter bus services, special services, and airport transfer services within the State of Nevada 
granted under CPCN 2055, Sub 5.  Staff investigation concluded. (RDG) 

153. Docket 22-08010 The Application of Perlman Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Reno Tahoe Limousine for expansion of 
authority granted under CPCN 2134 Sub 1 1101. Staff investigation concluded. (DG) 

154. Docket 23-01028 The final approval of a Motion for an Interim Order of American Investment Enterprises, Inc. 
d/b/a AMR for Temporary Transfer of Operating Rights Under CPCN 1034, Sub 3, to GMTCARE, LLC (RDG) 

VOLUNTARY CANCELLATIONS 

155. Docket 23-03033 The voluntary cancellation of contract carrier services provided by Las Vegas Wedding 
Services, LLC, MV 6141.  Staff investigation concluded. 

Applications Manager, Liz Babcock, summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0 

APPLICATIONS FOR DRIVER PERMITS 
(Closed sessions may be held for items 156 through 157 to consider character, alleged misconduct, 

professional competence, and physical or mental health pursuant to NRS 241.030.) 

156. Permit 12562 The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Scott Collier for issuance of a 
driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Staff investigation concluded. 
Status check set for the September 2023 Agenda  

157. Permit 14039 The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Thomas Comans III for issuance 
of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Staff investigation concluded. 
Permit denied 3-0 

158. Public Comment 

none 

159. Adjournment 
Meeting adjourned at 1:15 p.m. 


